Questions regarding the Iowa Plan for Behavioral Health RFP

Please note: Also being provided with the responses to questions to prospective bidders that have submitted a letter of intent (via a separate document) are the minutes from the SARS overview provided on November 12th and November 18th, which include answers to questions asked in those sessions.   Additional documents will include amendments to the RFP developed as a response to CMS suggestions and from the Department as a result of review of bidder’s questions.

1. In Section 1A.2, page 14, lines 73-78, the RFP states that the cost of TCM for individuals other than Iowa Plan enrollees is 50% paid by the Contractor and 50% by the counties (for the non-federal share). What is the unduplicated number of recipients for which the counties are responsible?

State Response:  There were approx 2100 in SFY02 and 2400 in 03. The detailed information on claims is available in Attachments: 1, 1A, 1B, and 1C.  For the service dates of 7/02 through 6/30-41,205, for the service dates of 7/01 through 6/0-38,347/

2. How many CADC certified individuals are registered with the State of Iowa? These practitioners were not included in the list given in Section IA.3.5, page 15, lines131-150. 

State Response:  Approximately 650.

3. In Section 1A.4, page 17, lines 184, the RFP states that there were 12,935 unduplicated enrollees authorized for one or more services in FY 2003. What was the number of unduplicated enrollees who received services for which authorization was not required during that same timeframe?
State Response:  49,041 recipients received a service paid by the Iowa Plan during SFY 2003. This includes the 12,935.

4. Section 2.2, page 30, lines 407-410, prohibits communication with Iowa officials regarding this procurement process. In order to assure that there is no inappropriate contact regarding this RFP, please identify the members of the evaluation committee for this RFP.

State Response:  Following is a listing of the Evaluation Panel Members: 

Gerd Clabaugh – Department of Administrative Services

Paul Pietzsch – Health Policy Corporation of Iowa

Dr. Dennis McCarty – Oregon Health & Science University
Dr. Virginia Mulkern – Human Services Research Institute 

Dr. Larry Marx – Oregon Health & Science University
5. In Section 2.3, page 31, line 438, the RFP states that it was scheduled for release on 10/24/03. The RFP was posted to the website on 10/29/03. Was the RFP released prior to the date it was posted on the website?

State Response:  Iowa is required to post any RFP of this nature on the Targeted Small Business website at least 48 hours prior to other postings.  That was done on October 24, 2003.  Because this is still accessible to the general public, the Departments consider October 24 to be the first date of publication. 

6. In Section 2.3, page 31, lines 433-436, the RFP references a public comment period. Are these responses a matter of public record? Will the state provide copies of these comments to the bidders?

State Response:  The comments are available to anyone who requests them.

7. Section 2.7, page 34, lines 562-563, states that amendments to the RFP will be mailed to bidders who have submitted a Letter of Intent to Bid. Will amendments, and responses to questions, also be posted to the website on the day they are mailed to allow for equal time for consideration by all bidders regardless of location and mail delays? 

State Response:  Responses and amendments will not be posted on the website. Responses and amendments, if any, will be mailed and emailed to the persons listed in the Letter of Intent. Because these are public documents, any person requesting them will be provided with a copy.  However, the Departments reserve the right to post all such documents if the need arises.

8. Is the Contractor responsible for payment of transportation for Iowa Plan recipients to any behavioral health services other than the Ambulance Transport referenced under Section 4A.2 on page 50 and Section 4B.2.1 on page 63, and the emergency transport referenced under Section 5A.9.8, page 88? 

State Response:  Yes, the contractor will be responsible for payment of non-emergent as well as emergent ambulance transportation.  Reimbursement responsibilities are in accordance with Medicaid rules at 441 Iowa Administrative Code (IAC) 78.13

9. In Section 4A.3.2, page 53, lines 174-202, the RFP outlines the criteria for pilot projects in prevention and early intervention. In Section 7A.2.15, page 138, lines 356-361, the RFP asks the bidder to propose a number of such projects. To avoid duplication, please provide a list and description of prior projects implemented under the current contract.

State Response:  The Department desires that each bidder independently assess the RFP and develop potential pilot programs.  Therefore, no such list will be provided.  Duplication of existing programs of this nature are not inappropriate for consideration.

10. In Section 4A.4, page 56, lines 302-322, the RFP gives examples of optional services that may be provided by the contractor. Which optional services are offered under the current contract?

State Response:  All of the optional services listed in the RFP on page 56 are provided by the current contractor. Two services that were previously optional, IPR and ACT shall be mandatory services under this contract to continue benefits available to enrollees under the current contract.
11. In Section 4A.6.5, pages 57-58, lines 381-414, the RFP provides the time and distance standards for access to mental health care. Are these standards currently in place? Based upon the last Geo-Access evaluation by the current Contractor, what percentage of the time does the current network meet each of these standards? This information is necessary in order to accurately predict the time and effort a contractor would need to devote to network development.

State Response:  Yes these standards are currently in place.  The Departments expect that services would be available 100% of the time within  the standards .  However, the application of the travel and distance standards is limited in certain more rural parts of the state by the extent to which providers exist within the particular geographic area.  The bidder should address the manner in which it intends to make certain services available in any areas in which it believes providers of such services do not exist within the area such that they can be accessed in accordance with the standard.   

12. In Section 4B.4.6, page 68, lines 309-324, there is a list of required services for the Women and Children’s Programs for substance abuse. For each required service listed under letters a) through f), please identify which of these services is reimbursed under the Iowa Plan for Behavioral Health contract via claims payment or other method.

State Response: As stated in the RFP these services must be provided in the specialized Women’s and Children’s programs.  Partnerships need to be established to provide these services and if there is no other funding mechanism to do so they will be provided through the case rate established for the specialized Women and children’s programs.  

13. In Section 4B.4.11, page 71, lines 416-434, the RFP provides the time and distance standards for access to substance abuse services. Are these standards currently in place? Based upon the last Geo-Access evaluation by the current Contractor, what percentage of the time does the current network meet each of these standards? This information is necessary in order to accurately predict the time and effort a contractor would need to devote to network development.

State Response: Yes these standards are currently in place.  Please refer to the answer to question #11 regarding the application of time and distance standards in the Iowa Plan, and the expectations of the bidder. 

14. In Section 5A.2.6.5 on page 75, lines 580-584, the RFP discusses on-site Utilization Management service in each of the Managed Care Plan Regions. Please provide the percentage of Enrollees, Participants and Members currently receiving behavioral health services in each of these regions.

State Response: This information is available in Attachments: 1, 1A, 1B, and 1C.
15. In Section 5A.4.2.3, page 79, line 726, the RFP specifies that the contractor provide notification in “prevalent” non-English languages. How many different “prevalent” non-English languages (aside from Spanish referenced in Section 5E.1.5, page 112, line 2026) are currently recognized in Iowa for this purpose?

State Response:  The Departments have not determined that any specific language other than Spanish is “prevalent” in any geographic area.  However, the successful bidder should indicate how it would handle issues of communication for those persons whose primary language is not English. If the Departments determine that another language is prevalent in another area, the contractor will be expected to provide notification in that language as well. The current contractor engages a service that provides access for over 100 languages.  The successful contractor is expected to have a plan to be sensitive to cultural diversity. 

16. In Section 5A.9.1, pages 83-84 of the RFP, lines 929-978, discusses the DHS Keep Kids Safe Policy. Has the policy been modified during the last contract period? If so, please provide information on what has changed, and when the change occurred.

State Response:  There has been no modification of this policy. The Keep Kids Save rules can be found at 441 IAC 88.67(8) and 441 IAC 88.73(2)”f”.  

17. Per Section 5A.9.4, page 86, lines 1056-1058, the RFP requires follow-up after emergency evaluation for substance abuse that does not result in inpatient admission. Please specify whether this follow-up is the responsibility of the Contractor or of the network provider. If this is the responsibility of the Contractor, can it be passed on to the provider via their contract requirements?

State Response:  The contractor is responsible for ensuring that the follow-up occurs. The contractor may delegate to its network contracted providers the task of conducting the requisite follow-up in these circumstances. It is advisable that such activities and expectations be specified in the contract between the contractor and the providers as the contractor is and will remain ultimately responsible for ensuring that the follow-up occurs. 

18. In Section 5B.2.9, page 90, lines 1214 and 1215, the RFP states that the enrollee may request a state fair hearing if they are not satisfied with the contractor’s decision. What percentage of denials is appealed, and what percentage of first appeals is referred to a state fair hearing? Of those appeals referred to a state fair hearing, what percentage is upheld?

State Response:  In SFY 2003 there were 786 appeals to the current contractor regarding either a denial of a claim or a non-authorization of level of care.  71 of them were appealed to the Department of Human Services for a state fair hearing and 57 actually went to a hearing. There were some additional appeal decisions pending at the end of the fiscal year.
19. In Section 6.4.1, page 119, line 2311, the RFP requires “on-line access to all major files and data elements within the MIS”. We have a series of questions to further define this requirement:  

· Which entities do the Departments envision having access to these data?

· For what functions is this access required?

· How does the State define “all major files and data elements” – for example, encounter files, UM files, etc.? 

State Response: 

· The Departments envision having access to these data?  State and federal auditing entities, OIG, independent assessment entities and external quality review organizations (EQRO) will have access to these data.  

· This access is required for quality reviews, contract oversight, auditing, verification and other validating exercises and data reporting.  
· Your assumption regarding how the state defines “all major files and data elements” is correct.

20. The RFP in Section 6.4, page 119, line 2278 states that the contractor must maintain data on third party liability payments and receipts. Please provide a history of TPL collections under the current contract for past operating years.

State Response:  We do not require the Contractor to report on what TPL it or its subcontractor(s) collect. The manner in which TPL is dealt with is up to the Contractor.
21. Under Section 6.6.1, page 124, lines 2497-2505, the RFP requires Insolvency Protection equal to two months of the total anticipated annual Medicaid capitation amount.  Section 6.6.3, page 124, lines 2515-2520, requires Working Capital in the form of cash or equivalents equal to at least the amount of the designated Medicaid Administrative Fund for the most recent 3-month period.  Section 6.6.3 does not say that the Insolvency Fund can cover the Working Capital Fund.  So if we assume that the contractor will be required to reserve at the funding levels paid in 2003, and that the administrative funds are bid at 15% of the capitation, would the minimum requirements be equivalent to the following calculations:

· Insolvency Protection = $84,289,439/6 = $14,048,239

· Surplus Fund = covered by Insolvency Protection

· Working Capital = ($84,289,439*15%)/4 = $3,160,853

· Total Capital Required at Beginning of the Contract =  $17,209,092?

State Response: Yes, with access to the insolvency protection fund restricted as specified in the RFP.

22. In Section 6.7.1, page 125, lines 2537-2539, the RFP states that the contractor shall have the capacity to provide electronic remittance advice and to transfer claims payment electronically. What percentage of the currently contracted providers has the capacity to submit claims in an electronic format?

State Response: Approximately 26% of all claims are filed electronically. There are currently 682 individual providers and 456 facility providers.  The Departments strongly encourage the enhancement of electronic filing whenever possible.
23. In Section 6.7.1, page 125, lines 2541-2553, the timelines for claims processing and payment are listed. What is the unduplicated annual count of enrollees for whom a claim for payment is submitted by a provider? 

State Response: 49,041 recipients received a service for which a claim was submitted in SFY 2003. Detailed information is available in the tables at Attachments: 1, 1A, 1B, and 1C.  
24. In Section 6.7.3, page 125, lines 2576-2580, the contractor’s responsibility for payment of co-payments and crossover claims is noted. Please provide the dollar amount of the co-payments and crossover claims for dual eligibles paid under the contract in past years.

State Response: This is an error. The contractor is not currently and will not be, responsible for payment of co-payments and crossover claims. The state’s Medicaid fiscal agent pays these.

25. Section 7.1, page 127, line 19, asks that the proposal be numbered in a manner that clearly demonstrates the page limits. Would you prefer that the sections from Programmatic Overview to the Budget Worksheet be consecutively numbered or would you prefer that each of the four sections be separately numbered? Please state your preference.
State Response: The Departments’ preference is that each section be separately numbered beginning with one, the pages within a section should also be labeled with the section number.
26. In Section 7.1, page 127, lines 24 and 25, the RFP states that attachments will be allowed only where noted in the RFP text. Where shall these attachments be located in the RFP response:  in a separate binder; attached within the same binder behind the completed RFP response; or included in the RFP response in the location where the question is asked that references such attachment?

State Response:  Attachments as appropriate to the bid submission should be marked appropriately and contained within the same binder at the end of the RFP response unless otherwise indicated.
27. Section 7.5, page 130, lines 140-151, states “Each bidder, as a mandatory part of its proposal, shall submit a bid bond or a certified check in favor of, or made payable to, the State of Iowa in the amount of (5) percent of the amount of the bid for the base term of the contract (July 1 2004 to June 30, 2006).”  If we assume that the rates stay at the 2003 amounts for the two years required, is the calculation and the required bid bond equal to the following: ($84,289,439*2)*5% = $8,417,405?

State Response: The Departments have calculated that the bid bond should be $860,000. The RFP will be amended to this effect. 

28. In Section 7A.2.2, page 132, line 68, the RFP references the CFSR Final Report specific to mental health and substance abuse service issues within the Iowa child welfare and juvenile justice systems. Where can this report be accessed?

State Response:  The report is not yet finalized and will not be so until after the bids are received.  The preliminary reports can be found at the following URL: http://www.dhs.state.ia.us/. At this site bidders can select specific reports by name.
29. Please provide the latest Geo-Access report under the current contract, or other data that addresses RFP Question 7A.2.3a, found on page 132, lines 74-78.

State Response:  There is no report available. It is the expectation that the bidder will conduct its own analysis in preparing its bid and describe in the bid just exactly what it did to assess service gaps by region. 

30. In Section 7A.2.5, page 133, lines 119-124, the RFP asks the bidder to submit any “Utilization Management Guidelines” that would be used for authorization of mental health services, as well as authorization of services using ASAM criteria. Please define what is meant by “Utilization Management Guidelines”. Is this a set of medical and psychosocial necessity criteria specific to each service code, or is this document intended to outline an overall approach to the subject?

State Response:  The bidder is expected to provide a copy of the UM criteria it will use in the application of services authorizations, whether this is from an established source or has been developed by the bidder and regardless of whether it is proprietary in nature.

31. In Section 7A.2.12, page 137, lines 287-292, the RFP asks for specific report examples. May these be included as attachments that are not subject to the page limit?

State Response: Yes

32. In Section 7A.2.14, page 138, line 344, the RFP asks for a copy of a 2003 QA Plan for a publicly-funded client. Is this to be included as an attachment? Is it excluded from the page limit for this section?

State Response: Yes to both questions.

33. In Section 7A.4.2, page 142, lines 523 and 524, state that the curriculum vitae will be excluded from the page length limit for this section. Are the vitae to be included within this section or attached per the instructions in response to question #24, above? 

State Response: Please refer to the response to question #26 above.
34. Section 9.3.3, page 151, line 735, references an incentive payment to the contractor. Please provide the history of payments of this type under the current contract specific to the performance outcomes in the Attachment to Section 9.

State Response:  The following, by state fiscal year, are the incentive payments that have been made to the contractor or the disincentives imposed. Please note that the amounts are not yet available for SFY 03 as these are pending validation.  

	Payment
	SFY 01
	SFY 02

	Incentive
	$890,000
	$890,000

	Disincentive
	$0
	$0


The Contractor met 8 out of 9 performance indicators with incentive payments in SFYs 01 and 02.

35. Section 10, page 178 of the RFP defines Decategorization, and mentions that some counties do this in a ‘cluster’. How many Decategorization Boards are operating in Iowa? 

State Response: There are 39 Decategorization Boards operating in Iowa.
36. In the attachment to Section 5D, page 46, the RFP states. “95% of care reviews will be resolved within 14 days”. Does this refer to requests for service authorization by a provider or consumer? 

State Response: Yes.  The request may be from either source.

37. The Iowa Plan Performance Measures in the Attachment to Section 5D, page 46, state that 85% of Medicaid claims shall be paid within 12 calendar days. Section 6.7.1, page 125 of the RFP, lines 2545-2546, states that the timeline is 14 days. Please clarify.

State Response: You are correct to note that the CMS-approved QA plan performance standards in Section 5D are more stringent than the language in the RFP. In cases in which federally-required standards are more stringent than state standards, the federal requirement prevails. The Departments will amend Section 6.7.1 to incorporate the more stringent standards.
38. Per Section 6.7.3, page 133, lines 2576-2580, the Contractor shall be responsible for co-payments and crossover claims for mental health and substance abuse provided to those enrollees who are eligible for Medicare and Medicaid. This same language was part of the Iowa Plan RFP in 1998 and then subsequently removed in Section 53.3 of the Contract.  As we recall, it was removed because it was discovered that the capitation payments did not adequately cover the costs and that the data systems for Medicare could not distinguish Iowa Plan covered service cross-over claims from other claims.  The capitation payment for Dual Eligibles was reduced in the Contract from the 1998 RFP as follows:





RFP


Contract

Females
$43.56


$39.51 

Males

$48.60 

$44.57

In addition, it appears that the capitation payments in the current RFP do not reflect the increase for the co-payments and crossover claims, since the capitation payment for Dual Eligibles is the same as currently paid without those claims.   

a. What is the history of claims payment for co-payments and crossover claims?

b. What has changed that the capitation payment can support this increase in claims? 

c. Can the data systems report to the Iowa Plan contractor the information needed to accurately pay co-payments and crossover claims?

Was Section 6.7.3 mistakenly put into the RFP requirements?  

State Response: Section 6.7.3 was mistakenly included in the RFP requirements. There has been no increase in the capitation rate for this group. The contractor is not responsible for co-payments and crossover claims. The RFP will be amended to reflect the correction.  
39. Per section 7.5, page 138, lines 140-151 of the RFP, each bidder is required to submit a bid bond or certified check in the amount of 5% of the bid for the base term.  If the base amount includes both cost of care as well as the contractor's administrative fees, the amount of the bond exceeds $10 million, an amount far in excess of any conceivable damages to the State resulting from the failure of the successful bidder to enter into the contract with the State.  Therefore, we assume that the base amount for this purpose refers only to the contractor’s administrative fees.  Please clarify.


State Response: Please refer to the response to question #27 above.
40. 
In question 7A.2.14 (g), page 146, line 344, there is a request to provide a copy of a QA plan that was developed for a publicly funded client.  Can the QA plan be an attachment?


State Response: Please refer to the response to question #32 above.
41.
Regarding Section 7A.5, page 150, lines 544-546, is the required Budget Worksheet an attachment? (The section has a three-page limit, and the worksheet exceeds that limit.)


State Response: In this case, the completed budget worksheet should be provided with the response to this section and will not be counted in the page limit.

42. 
Section 2.13,  p. 35; lines 607ff - Section 9.39, p. 167; line 1485ff - Section 2.13 (lines 607ff) states that submission of a proposal shall constitute a waiver of any objections to the terms and conditions of the RFP.  Section 9.39 (lines 1485ff), however, provides for an amendment of the terms and conditions by mutual agreement.  Does the State intend to allow any opportunity for amendment as provided by Section 9.39 prior to the execution of the contract or prior to July 1, 2004?

State Response: The state does not anticipate making any amendments not addressed in its responses to these questions or because of the requirement/request of CMS.  If other changes are needed prior to the execution of the contract, those changes would be incorporated into the contract prior to execution.  Amendments beyond those derived as noted in this response or after the responses to questions are delivered to prospective bidders shall be filed, in the form of a letter of commitment and/or amendment, after the contact is executed.  
43. 
Section 5A.9.8, p. 88; lines 116ff - Will the contractor be responsible for transportation costs to and from juvenile or adult correctional facilities and similar settings?

State Response: No. While Medicaid covers non-emergent and emergent ambulance transportation, persons in correctional facilities, and persons between the ages of 21 and 64 in a mental health institute, are not eligible for Medicaid coverage under rules at 441 IAC 75.12 and Chapter 85.
44. 
Section 4A.7, p. 59; lines 439ff - Please provide sufficient information to allow bidders to identify information technology capabilities required to establish connectivity, accept and transmit information on SPP members.

State Response: The file of eligibles/enrollees is sent to the contractor using the software purchased by the contractor, Connect Direct.  It is expected that the contractor would have the capacity to accept the files either using by using Connect Direct software or by retrieving a PGP-encrypted file from of the state’s server using an FTP process. 
45. 
Section 6.2, Page 115; lines 2121ff - If a bidder other than the incumbent is selected,  what data will the Departments require to be transferred into the new contractor’s management information system?

State Response: It is expected that the contractor will receive eligibility and enrollment files from January 1999 forward as well other recipient-specific files that may be contained in the current contractor’s system that are the property of the Departments. The contractor will be expected to build an archive database from existing data. 
46.
Section 6.2, Page 115; lines 2133ff - The contractor is required to transfer data between SARS, MMIS, Medicaid eligibility system, the MHI and SPP information systems.  Are other data transfers required to be in place on or before June 1, 2004?

State Response: Only those specified in the RFP are required. 
47. 
Section 6.4, page 117; lines 2220ff - Please provide sufficient specifications to allow bidders to identify information technology capabilities required to establish connectivity and exchange information with the MHI information system.  The frequency and content of data exchange with the MHIs also would be helpful.

State Response:  Section 6.4.4 does not require connection to the MHI information system. It only requires that the contractor have the capacity to electronically receive information from the MHI system. 

48.  Section 6.4, page 117; lines 2225 and 2226 - Please describe the data that the contractor must be prepared to receive from non-Iowa Plan participants served by network providers.  Are the data submitted by providers simultaneously and in the same format as SARS data or are other IT capabilities required?  If so, please describe those capabilities.

State Response:  The required SARS forms are in Attachment 6.4.  these forms are filled out on all clients entering the substance abuse system regardless of whether they are an Iowa Plan participant or not.  The data are submitted by providers simultaneously and in the same format as the SARS data.  

49. 
Section 6.4, p. 118; lines 245ff - Please describe the hardware and software requirements required to allow the Contractor access to the FACS system.  Is an Internet connection available, or is a fractional T1 connection the only viable alternative?

State Response: An Internet connection is not currently available. Currently, the state is providing information to the contractor using Connect Direct software. The Department would like to consider the potential for using FTP in the future. It is anticipated that a mutually acceptable mechanism to be used will be worked out.
50. 
Section 6.4, p. 118; lines 2250ff - Please describe the assistance the Contractor will provide DPH in implementing the transition to a web infrastructure.  To plan adequate staffing, please indicate the duration of this assistance and to what extent the cost is included in the allowable DPH administrative fee.  If the contractor is expected to provide hardware, manuals or other material, please describe these requirements as well.

State Response:  The Department expects that the contractor will be supportive in this move to a web based system.  In other words we expect the contractor to have a basic understanding of the WITS system so they can give basic encouragement to programs.  DPH will do all the training involved in this as well as respond to questions.  There are no expectations for the contractor to provide hardware, manuals or other materials. The DPH would also welcome any suggestions from the contractor as to improvements in the system.   
51. 
Section 6.4, p. 118; lines 2265ff - Please indicate the number of counties who are currently providing update information to enable the Contractor to enter settlement information on individual enrollees in their MIS.

State Response: All 99 counties should be reporting this information

52. 
Section 6.4.1, page 119; lines 2311 - Does this section require that the Departments be provided with on-line access to all major files and data elements within the Contractor’s MIS?  If so, please specify the number of users to whom the Departments will grant access, their locations and whether the Contractor has any financial responsibility for connectivity, hardware or software in assuring this access.

State Response: No. Please refer to the responses to questions #19, 46 and 47 above.
53. 
Section 6.4.2, page 120; lines 2335 ff - Please provide specifications for the data tape on psychotropic medications and any specific requirements for the content of the quarterly utilization analysis.

State Response: Section 6.4.2 was mistakenly included and will be removed via an amendment.
54. 
Section 6.4.2, page 120; lines 235ff - Please describe the DUR’s current activities related to psychotropic medications.

State Response: DUR currently conducts retrospective review of psychotropic medication utilization.
55. 
Section 6.5.3.1, p. 122; lines 2441ff - It is possible that service utilization may vary somewhat from the budget projections contained in the Budget Worksheet.  Please describe the process by which the Contractor can work with the Departments to update the budget as required.

State Response: The Departments recognize that utilization may vary somewhat from the budget projections The Department will monitor utilization and will closely review any significant departures from utilization projections. 
56. 
Section 6.6, p. 123; lines 2482ff - Can the financial solvency protections required of an Iowa LSO be used in meeting the DHS solvency requirements?
State Response: Yes, if they are comparable.  The contractor will be required to complete the LSO process according to the current RFP requirements.  
57. 
Section 6.7.1, p. 125; lines 237ff - Please provide the volume of providers who currently:

· receive their remittance advice electronically; 
· receive their remittance through electronic funds transfer

State Response: Please refer to the response to question #22 above. 

58. 
Section 7.5, p. 130; lines 140ff - Please provide the Departments’ estimate of the amount of the bid for the base term of the contract so bidders can include a bond in an amount that complies with the Departments’ requirements.

State Response: Please refer to the response to question #27 above.

59. 
Section 7.5, p. 130; lines 140ff - The amount established for the bid bond is significantly higher than other states typically require.  For example, if the total Iowa Plan were valued at $100 million per year, bidders would be required to offer a $10 million bid bond.  A much lower amount would still effectively assure contract execution.  Would the Departments consider lowering the bid bond? In addition, will the Departments accept a performance bond in lieu of a bid bond?

State Response: Please refer to the response to question #27 above.
60. 
Section 7A.3.1, p. 140; lines 440ff - Please confirm that the required organizational charts and curriculum vitae are for the bidder’s corporate structure and not for staff they would employ in Iowa.  Conversely, if they are to relate to Iowa-based staff, will the Departments accept job descriptions (including educational/experience requirements) in lieu of vitae?  Bidders other than the incumbent will not have all executive management staff in place at the time the RFP is submitted.

State Response: Yes, the required charts and curriculum vitae are for the bidder’s corporate structure.
61. 
Section 7A.4.2, p. 142; lines 523ff - Bidders other than the incumbent may not have recruited the individual who would have responsibility for local operations of the Iowa Plan.  Would the Departments prefer the job description and educational/experience required of persons in similar positions or should bidders submit the vita of the person who would head transition/implementation efforts?
State Response: If the bidder cannot identify the individual who would have responsibility for local operations of the Iowa Plan the bidder should provide the job description and educational and work experience that they will require of the person they ultimately hire. 
62. 
Section 7A.5, p. 143; lines 560ff - For the Budget Worksheet, do the Departments require one worksheet for each of the 14 capitation rates referred to in Section 9.3.1 (p. 149, lines 660ff) or just one summary worksheet which would be a composite of all 14 rates?
State Response: Just one summary worksheet.
63. 
Section 7A.5, p. 143; lines 560ff - Are there particular codes or other definitions that the Departments require to assure consistency in the data provided in each service category of the Budget Worksheets?
State Response: No. The Department has not elected to define the categories in the budget work sheet by DRG or CPT or APG codes. 
64.
Section 9.1, p. 149; lines 639ff - This section puts the contractor at risk for the State Payment Plan while other sections require Administrative Services Only (ASO).  Can we assume this particular section will be updated?
State Response: Section 9.1. explains that the contractor will be at risk but only for for administrative services for the state payment plan enrollees.

65.
Section 9.1, p. 149; lines 644, 645 - Is the contractor required to meet Prepaid Health Plan requirements as well as Limited Service Organization requirements?  If so, and if requirements are contradictory, which prevails?

State Response: The successful bidder must be or become licensed LSO by the Iowa Insurance Division and the successful bidder will be considered a PIHP pursuant to CMS and BBA regulations. Federal requirements prevail unless the Iowa requirements are more stringent. 

66. 
Section 9.2, p. 149; lines 654-656 - In regards to Section 9.2 (lines 654-56) language regarding the State's unilateral right to exercise options for additional one year periods beyond the initial two year contract period.  Will the State allow the Contractor the option to non-renew, with sufficient notice, prior to the extension of the contract by the State?

State Response: Yes, if the contractor provides notice according to the provisions of the negotiated contract.

67. 
Section 9.3.2, p. 150; lines 691ff - In Section 7A, lines 568 and following, the RFP stipulates that the cost of administrative services including profit cannot exceed 15% of the Medicaid capitation.  Section 9.3.2 establishes the Community Reinvestment Account as separate from other accounts.   A total of 2.5% of the total capitation is to be transferred into the Community Reinvestment Account.  Please explain if the 2.5% dedicated to community reinvestment is included in the cost of administrative services or if administrative services can be up to 15%, community reinvestment at least 2.5% and the cost of care (medical budget) at least 82.5%.

State Response: The 2.5% of the capitation that is to be used on community reinvestment is separate from the 15% that the contractor can allocate to administrative services. The percent of the capitation that must be spent on direct care is at least 82.5%.

68. Section 9.3.2, pp150-151; lines 704ff - Is the contractor allowed to invest medical budget dollars into additional 1915(b)(3) services in addition to those that might be covered under the Community Reinvestment Account?  If so, what rules govern whether such services are counted as part of the medical budget and which are part of the Community Reinvestment Account? 


State Response:  CRA funds are designed to pay for development and start-up costs for additional services.  Typically, such support lasts one year or less after which time they are paid from the medical budget dollars.  CRA funds may be used for both direct services and administrative activities such as education and training but no more than 30% of CRA funds may be for other than direct service payments to providers.  

Please also note that any unspent dollars in the Medicaid claims fund are transferred to the Community Reinvestment account following each year’s claims run-out audit. Any penalty that would be assessed against the contractor would be paid to the Community Reinvestment account.  CRA funds may be returned to the Department at the end of any contract year.

69.
Section 9.3.2, pp150-151; lines 704ff - Provider Development and Consumer Outreach can be funded by up to 30% of the Community Reinvestment Account.  These services are typically part of a contractor’s administrative services and covered in the administrative component of the capitation payment.  Please explain how these services are differentiated by DHS to assure the contractor’s compliance with financial requirements of the RFP and contract.

State Response: The provider development and consumer outreach envisioned that would be funded through the community reinvestment fund is expected to be used for efforts that are above and beyond what is normally covered through a contractor’s administrative services budget. Each CRA project is subject to prior approval of the Departments, and CMS when applicable.

70. 
Section 9.6.2, p 156, lines 953ff - Are the reasons noted as the basis for termination for cause, including bankruptcy, mandatory on the Departments?

State Response: No.
71. 
Section 9.6.3, p. 156; lines 975ff - Section 9.6.3 (lines 975-979) provides the State a provision for termination without cause.  Will the State provide a reciprocal right to Contractor with a sufficient notice period, for example, 120 days notice?

State Response: The reciprocal right depends on what is negotiated in the contract.
72. 
Section 9.10, p. 160; lines 1160ff - Section 9.10 (lines 1160-1184) seems to preclude Contractor from exercising any right to legal remedies beyond those expressly set forth in this Section.  Is this the State's intent?  For example, does the State intend to preclude Contractor from pursuing litigation in the event of a breach of contract by the State?
State Response: No, the Departments are not precluding the contractor from exercising legal remedies beyond what is in this RFP.  The  contractor must exhaust Administrative remedies first and that decision is final for purposes of Iowa Code Chapter 17a.  If the matter is not resolved in a favorable manner to the contractor, they may proceed to district court for judicial review of other agency action.  The contractor is required to exhaust administrative remedies first but is not precluded from a right to legal remedy.

73. 
Section 9.62.2, p. 172; lines 1690ff - Section 9.62.2 (lines 1690-1719), this section suggests the State will review and approve/disapprove every provider contract entered into by Contractor, is this correct?  If so, what is the approval/disapproval process?

State Response:  No. The Departments will review the contract template for all providers and will review any changes to individual contracts if they differ from the template.  The contractor will be responsible for following all state and federal guidelines including debarment sanctions.  Then, prior to entering into contracts with the provider the Departments will review the list of potential providers.  Once contracts are implemented, the departments  will review changes to the contract template and any changes to individual contracts if they differ from the template. 
 

74. 
Section 9.13, pp. 161-162; lines 1222ff - Please clarify which of the funds listed in this section, if any, are additional revenue for the Contractor and what organization receives or retains the others.

State Response: None of those funds are additional revenue for the contractor.  The programs will receive and retain all of these funds.

75. 
Attachments to Section 9...Medicaid Performance Indicators with Financial Disincentives:  Standard #8 relates to “timely care reviews.”  Please provide additional description of a “care review” and what staff perform it.  Any additional information related to the concern addressed in this standard also would be appreciated.

State Response: A care review is a review of a patient’s condition, diagnosis and other circumstances that is conducted upon receipt of a request for a service that requires prior approval. Please refer to section 5A.2 of the RFP regarding staff who perform utilization management functions.

78. 
Attachments to Section 9:  Please confirm that the Performance Indicators will become effective after the contract start date.
State Response: Performance indicators become effective on the contract start date.

79. 
Attachments to Section 9...Utilization, Expenditure and Enrollment Data:  Are the Departments able to provide the utilization, enrollment and expenditure information in Section 9 (1A.4, 1A.4.3, and 1B.1) in Excel spreadsheets so bidders can more easily manipulate the data?  If so, please indicate how these files can be requested.
State Response: This information is available in Excel spreadsheets in RFP Attachments: 1, 1A, 1B, and 1C.  
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